I. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 


On May 25, 2011, the Circuit Court of Jefferson County granted summary 

judgment to Lori Ann Staubs, the next friend of her minor daughter, Jessica Staubs, and the 

Administratrix of the Estate of Samantha Nichole Dawn Staubs, her 14-year-old daughter who 

died on December 10, 2006, as the result of a single-vehicle accident. R000311- R000344. The 

Court's Order granted summary judgment against the Petitioner, Jonathan Ray Marcus ("the 

Petitioner"), whose only mistake that night was to give the young Samantha Staubs and her 15

year-old friend, Kelly Mazur, a ride, some five hours prior to the tragic accident which resulted 

in Jessica Staubs' injuries and her sister's death.l Id. Incredibly, despite the parties' agreement 

on the undisputed material facts, the Court erroneously concluded that the Petitioner negligently 

provided alcohol to the minors; that the minors' independent criminal acts did not act as 

intervening/superseding causes; and that the girls themselves were not negligent. Id. It is from 

this Order that the Petitioner appeals. 

The night of the accident, the Petitioner had received a phone call from 14-year

old Samantha Staubs, asking him if he would give her and her friend a ride. 2/24111 Deposition 

of Kelly Mazur, pp. 16-17,22,27. As he was planning to give his friend Steve Woodward a ride 

to the store anyway, he agreed, and stopped to pick up the girls. 3/22/10 Deposition of Jonathon 

Ray Marcus, p. 11.2 They asked for a ride to the top of Engle Road -- and from there, they 

I The parties filed cross-motions for summary judgment. While minor changes were made, the Circuit 
Court largely adopted the Respondent's proposed order granting summary judgment and denying the Petitioner's 
motion for summary judgment. Compare R000311- R000344 with ROOO 193- R000218. 

2 Kelly Mazur testified that the decision to go to the Sweet Springs store was made in the truck, when the 
girls found out that Woodward was over the age of 21. 2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p 33 .. However, this is 
not a material fact. 
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planned to walk to a party at the home of their 14-year-old friend, Adrian Villalobos. Id. 

2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, pp. 16-17. 

As requested, the Petitioner picked up the girls. On the way, he stopped at the 

Sweet Springs store, and his friend Woodward, age 25, went into the store, where he purchased 

four 40-ounce bottles of Hurricane Malt Liquor. 2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, pp. 33-37. 

The undisputed facts are that the Petitioner did not go into the store; the Petitioner did not 

participate in purchasing alcohol for the minors; and the Petitioner did not give the minors any 

alcohol. Id; R000142; 2/24/11 Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp. 27-30;3/15/11 Deposition of 

M.J., p. 23; 3/16/11 Deposition of Adrian Villalobos, pp.22-27. 

A short time later, the Petitioner dropped the girls off at the end of Engle Road. 

2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 39. The facts are in dispute about how the girls acquired 

the alcohol; one version involves Woodward handing the girls the bag with the Hurricanes in it, 

and the other version has the girls stealing the bag from the back of the Petitioner's pickup. 

Compare 2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, pp. 35-36 with 3/16/11 Deposition of Steven 

Woodward, p. 88. What is undisputed, however, is that the Petitioner never left his vehicle, and 

that the Petitioner did not provide any alcohol to the girls. ROOOI42; 2/24/11 Deposition of 

Jessica Staubs, pp. 27-30; 2/24/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, pp. 33-37; 3/15/11 Deposition of 

M.J., p. 23; 3/16/11 Deposition of Adrian Villalobos, pp. 22-27. 

It is further undisputed that the Petitioner had no further contact with the girls that 

night. After they left his pickup, the Petitioner went to Woodward's house, where he watched a 

movie; and, later, he went home. 3/16/11 Deposition of Steven Woodward, p. 41. 
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The girls, however, had a much more eventful evening. Their young friend, 

Adrian Villalobos and two of his friends met them at the end of Engle Road, and, together, they 

walked, bag in hand, to the Villalobos home. 2124/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 39; 2/24/11 

Deposition of Jessica Staubs, p. 32. Although someone dropped the bag and one of the 

Hurricanes broke en route, when they arrived at the Villalobos residence, at 8:30 or 9:00 that 

evening, they still had three of the 40-ounce bottles of Hurricane Malt Liquor. 2/24/11 

Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 26; 3116111 Deposition of Adrian Villalobos, p. 35. Adrian's 

parents and siblings were not home at the time, and Adrian took advantage of the opportunity to 

have a party. 2124/11 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 39; 2124/11; Deposition of Jessica Staubs, 

p.32. Altogether, there were seven minors at the Villalobos home that night: Adrian (age 14)3, 

Matt Lonas (age 13 or 14)\ Adam Longerbeam (age 13 or 14)5, Samantha Staubs (age 14), 

Jessica Staubs (age 13), and M.J.6 (age 14), and Kelly Mazur. Together, they spent the evening 

drinking the Hurricanes, plus some Vodka they had sneaked out of the liquor cabinet at the 

Villalobos residence. 2124/11 Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp.41-44, 46-47; R000366. 

After "chugging" the Hurricanes and the Vodka they had stolen, all of the minors 

were intoxicated. 2124/11 Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp. 41-44; 46-47; 52-53; R000077. 

Later that evening (about 1.5 to 2 hours later), Villalobos' parents returned, and the girls were 

advised that they needed to leave. 3/16/11 Deposition of Adrian Villalobos, p. 59. Having lied 

to their parents about where they were going~ none of the girls felt they could call their parents 

3 3/16/11 Deposition of Adrian Villalobos, p.40. 


42/24111 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 66. 


5 Id. at p. 66. 


6 The Petitioner will use the initials M.J. to refer to the minor driving the vehicle, since juvenile 

proceedings resulted from the accident in question. The juvenile charges are discussed in this Motion. Juvenile 
proce,edings are confidential. See West Virginia Code § 49-5-17. 
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for a ride; so they decided it would be better for them to find their own ride. 2/24/11 Deposition 

of Kelly Mazur, p. 22. Unable to get any of their friends to give them a ride, they decided to 

steal a car. 7 Id. at 23-26; 2/24/11 Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp. 50-51; 3116111 Deposition of 

Adrian Villalobos, pp 92-101. 

Samantha Staubs and M.J. did just that -- they left the Villalobos residence, stole 

a pickup, and returned to pick up the other two girls. 2/24111 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 33; 

2/24111, Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp. 53-54. In spite of the fact that all were intoxicated, 

they climbed inside the vehicle, with 14-year-old M.J. at the wheel, and headed down Mission 

Road. 2/24111 Deposition of Jessica Staubs, pp. 53-55; 2/24111 Deposition of Kelly Mazur, p. 

59-61. Just minutes later, the intoxicated M.l lost control of the vehicle, and it struck an 

embankment. R000337. Samantha Staubs was killed on impact, and the others girls, including 

Jessica Staubs, sustained serious injuries. Id. 

This w~s a terrible accident, which tragically resulted in the death of a young girl. 

However, the injustice did not end that night. Instead, the mother of the girls; Lori Staubs, sued 

to recover damages for the death of one daughter and injuries to the other. The Circuit Court of 

Jefferson County perpetuated the injustice by finding that the Petitioner negligently provided 

alcohol to two minors -- Samantha Staubs and her friend Kelley Mazur -- merely because he 

drove the vehicle which transported them and Steve Woodward to the store, where Woodward 

bought alcohol which was later consumed by Samantha Staubs, her younger sister, and several 

7 There was some evidence that the girls made phone calls before leaving the Villalobos residence, in an 
attempt to find a ride, before Samantha Staubs and M.J. left to steal a car. There was even speculation (offered by 
Steven Woodward, who was not even there), that the girls may have called the Petitioner for another ride. The 
Petitioner denied having spoken with the girls. No one testified that the Petitioner did, in fact, speak with any of the 
girls after they became intoxicated. Instead, he, like many others, learned of the girls' fate the next day. 
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others. There was no evidence whatsoever that the Petitioner, Marcus, ever bought the girls 

alcohol, provided money for the purchase of the alcohol, handed the girls alcohol, or did 

anything other than drive his truck to the store. Under even the wildest of theories, the Circuit 

Court should not have granted judgment to the Respondent/Plaintiff and against the 

PetitionerlDefendant; and this Court should reverse that unjust decision and, instead, grant 

judgment in favor of the Petitioner, as the undisputed facts prove that he had no duty, and 

breached no duty, to the Plaintiffs ward or the Plaintiffs decedent. The undisputed facts further 

establish that, even if there had been a duty, the criminal and reckless conduct of the girls acted 

as intervening/superseding causes, thereby cutting off any chain of causation. 

II. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

1. The Circuit Court erred in finding that the Petitioner was negligent 

because he did not owe a legal duty to the Staubses. 

2. Even assuming that the Petitioner owed a duty to the Staubses, he should 

not have been held liable, because the intervening, criminal acts of the minors broke the chain of 

causation. 

3. Even·ifthe Petitioner had supplied alcohol to the minors, which Petitioner 

denies, the Court erred in finding him liable, because West Virginia does not recognize "social 

host liability." 

4. The Circuit Court erred by making numerous, erroneous findings of fact, 

and by improperly weighing the evidence, in order to justify entering summary judgment for the 

Respondent. 
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III. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 


This Honorable Court should reverse the Circuit Court of Berkeley County's.May 

25,2011 Order and, instead, direct the entry ofjudgment in favor of the Petitioner. As the record 

demonstrates, the undisputed facts show that the Petitioner had no part in causing the accident 

that killed Samantha Staubs and injured Jessica Staubs. The Petitioner did not buy or give the 

minors the alcohol that they drank that night, and he did not drink it with them. Nor did he help 

them to steal and wreck a truck. The Petitioner merely picked up Samantha Staubs and her 

friend, Kelly Mazur, drove to the Sweet Springs store (which he did not enter), then dropped 

them off at a friend's house. These actions do not amount to negligence. 

First, the Circuit Court erroneously granted the Respondent's Motion for 

Summary Judgment because there is no evidence that the Petitioner had or breached any duties 

to Samantha and Jessica Staubs. The court held that the Petitioner violated criminal laws by 

. contributing to the delinquency of minors by buying, giving, or furnishing alcohol to them, and 

assisting Woodward in committing these crimes. However, this finding is flawed because there 

is absolutely no evidence supporting such a conclusion. In fact, both the testimony of the 

Petitioner and Kelly Mazur show that the Petitioner acted lawfully on the night in question. 

Moreover, the Court's finding that the Petitioner breached a duty by failing "to 

respond to the call for help and assistance" after the intoxicated minors allegedly called him to 

get a ride at the end of the night is completely unsupported by the evidence. Jessica Staubs never 

testified that she called the Petitioner to get a ride. Moreover, none of the other girls who were 

there ever testified that they called the Petitioner to get a ride. It is clear that this finding is not 

supported by the evidence. 
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The Circuit Court also ignored well-settled law stating that a person has no legal 

duty to protect another from a third party's willful, malicious, and criminal acts. In the case sub 

judice, the law of this State does not impose a duty on the Petitioner to prevent the Staubses' 

illegal consumption of alcohol, the theft of a vehicle, driving under the influence, driving without 

a license, and reckless driving. Therefore, the Circuit Court committed clear legal error. 

Even assuming, arguendo, that the Petitioner breached a legal duty, there 

certainly was no proximate cause. The court claims that the Petitioner's driving a vehicle -

some four or five hours prior to the fatal accident -- somehow equates to the proximate cause of 

Samantha Staubs' death and Jessica Staubs' injuries. This is illogical and not supported by the 

law. It is obvious that numerous intentional criminal acts committed in between the time that the 

Petitioner dropped the girls off at the end of Engle Road, and the time that M.J. stole and 

wrecked a vehiCle, acted to break any chain of events allegedly started by the Petitioner. 

The intervening, illegal acts of M.J. and Samantha Staubs acted to break the chain 

of causation between the Petitioner's alleged actions several hours before the accident, and the 

minors' injuries and death. It is uncontested that the Petitioner picked up the girls, drove his 

vehicle to the Sweet Springs convenience store where Woodward purchased alcohol, and then 

dropped the girls off. It· is likewise uncontested that the Petitioner did not purchase the alcohol, 

or force the minors to drink it. Likewise, he did not steal or wreck the vehicle that M.J. was 

driving while intoxicated. Finally, it was impossible for the Petitioner to foresee that M.J., a 14

year-old girl, would drive without a license and under the influence of alcohol, or that Samantha 

Staubs and M.J. would steal a vehicle. The commission of these serious offenses is not the 

normal consequence of underage drinking. It is apparent that these criminal acts started the 

chain of events that proximately caused death and injuries. It is absurd to suggest otherwise. 
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Third, the trial court erred in finding that the Petitioner was not a "social host." 

Even if the Petitioner furnished alcohol to the minors (which the court found, but Defendant has 

always denied), he would be a "social host," a term that is broadly defined under the law. It is 

well known that social host liability has been abolished in this State. The term "social host" is 

used broadly to designate "anyone who furnishes alcoholic beverages without remuneration." 29 

Causes ofAction 2d 435 (citing Kapres v.Heller, 536 Pa. 551, 640 A.2d 888 (1994)). Here, the 

Respondent alleges that the Petitioner furnished alcohol to minors by driving them to the Sweet 

Springs store, where Woodward allegedly bought them alcohol. Thus, even if the lower court 

were to believe the Respondent's allegations, it would support a finding that the Petitioner is not 

liable, since he would meet the definition of a "social host." 

Finally, the trial court made numerous, erroneous findings of fact, and 

inappropriately weighed the evidence in this case, in direct contravention of this Court's mandate 

in Painter v. Peavy, 192 W. Va. 189,192,451 S.E.2d 755, 758 (1994). For example, the Circuit 

Court committed grave error in finding that the Petitioner admitted to helping the minors procure 

alcohol. Specifically, the Circuit Court stated that, "Petitioner has admitted his actions and there 

is no dispute regarding what he did." This is completely false. In fact, in the pleadings, his brief, 

and during oral argument, counsel for the Petitioner stressed several times that the Petitioner 

disputes that he assisted the minors.in procuring alcoholic beverages. R000352-R000360; May 

2,2011 Transcript from Summary Judgment Hearing, p. 6; R000004; R000221; R000223. 

Also, the Circuit Court erred in finding that the Petitioner provided alcohol to 

Jessica Staubs. It is uncontested that the Petitioner never even had contact with Jessica Staubs 

on the night in question. Therefore, this finding completely ignores the evidence. 
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Incredibly, the trial court even went so far as to state that Respondent Jessica 

Staubs was "guilty of nothing." This conclusion completely ignores the evidence. Jessica 

Staubs was not an innocent bystander that night -- she was fully aware that she was drinking 

illegally -- that was why she did not call her parents that night to give her a ride home. Rather 

than suffer the wrath of her parents, she thought it preferable to get in a stolen vehicle with an 

underage, drunk driver. She was an active participant in the events that led up to the accident. 

As such, the presumption that she is incapable of negligence is broken. 

The Circuit Court also inappropriately weighed the evidence in this case to 

determine the percentage of negligence of both the Petitioner and Jessica Staubs. It is impossible 

to make this determination without weighing the evidence to determine how much each party 

was at fault. Therefore, it is apparent that the court haphazardly made factual determinations at 

the summary judgment stage, which is prohibited by this Court. 

For these reasons, this Honorable Court should reverse and vacate the May 25, 

2011 Order from which the Petitioner has appealed, and should direct the entry of summary 

judgment in favor ofthe Petitioner. 

IV. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

Pursuant to Rule 10(c)(6) of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, the 

Petitioner respectfully requests that the Court allow oral argument in this matter and, pursuant to 

Rule 18( a)( 4) of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, respectfully represents that oral 

argument is necessary because, although the ultimate issue is relatively straightforward, i.e., 

whether the Circuit Court erred in granting the Respondent's Motion for Summary Judgment, the 

legal principles underlying the ultimate issue are such as to require full, detailed development, so 

oral argument would significantly aid the Court's decisional process. 
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Pursuant to Rule lO(c)(6) of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate Procedure, the 

Petitioner also states that the time allotted by Rule 19 of the West Virginia Rules of Appellate 

Procedure is insufficient and that the extended time provided by Rule 20 of the West Virginia 

Rules of Appellate Procedure is necessary here because this matter involves issues of the utmost 

fundamental public importance. i.e.; issues surrounding an adult's liability in relation to a 

minor's illegal consumption of alcohol. 

V. 	 POINTS AND AUTHORITIES AND LEGAL ANALYSIS 

This case arose because the Respondent alleged ordinary negligence against the 

Petitioner. In order to establish a cause of action for negligence, the Respondent must prove that 

the Petitioner owed Respondent's decedent, Samantha Staubs, and minor daughter, Jessica 

Staubs, a duty; that the Petitioner failed to perform the duty; and that the Petitioner's failure to 

perform the duty proximately resulted in the death and injuries at issue. Yeager v. Morgan, 189 

W. Va. 174, 176-78, 429 S.E.2d 61, 63-65 (1993). The Circuit Court erred because the 

undisputed facts show that that the Respondent failed to prove the essential elements of 

negligence. A discussion of each of the errors made by the court in its May 25, 2011 Order is 

presented, supra. 

A. 	 STANDARDOFREVIEW 

This Honorable Court reviews a circuit court's decision to grant summary 

judgment under a de novo standard. Syl. Pt. 1, Painter v. Peavy, 192 W.Va. 189,451 S.E.2d 755 

(1994). Accordingly, this Court applies the same standards initially applied by the circuit court 

to determine whether summary judgment was appropriate. Williams v. Precision Coil, Inc., 194 

W.Va. 52, 58, 459 S.E.2d 329, 335 (1995). Summary judgment is mandated when the record, 
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viewed most favorably to the non-moving party, demonstrates no genuine issues of material fact 

and the moving party's entitlement to judgment as a matter of law. Powderidge Unit Owners 

Ass'n v. Highland Properties, Ltd., 196 W.Va. 692,474 S.E.2d 872 (l996). 

B. 	 THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN FINDING THAT THE PETITIONER WAS 
NEGLIGENT BECAUSE HE DID NOT OWE A LEGAL DUTY TO THE 
STAUBSES. 

The first element of negligence -- the presence of a legal duty -- was not proven 

by the Respondent. To the contrary, the Petitioner proved that he had no legal duty to the 

Staubses. As the undisputed facts in the record demonstrate, the Circuit· Court should have 

ended its analysis after examining the evidence showing that no legal duty exists. 

1. 	 The record is devoid of any credible evidence showing that the Petitioner 
failed to obey the law or pick up the Staubses after the party. 

The Circuit Court committed reversible error by finding that the Petitioner 

breached a duty to obey the law. Specifically, the Court concluded that the Petitioner "violated 

mUltiple statutes" by contributing to the delinquency of the minors, illegally providing them with 

alcoholic beverages, and assisting Woodward in obtaining alcohol for the minors.8 R000321. 

The Court reasoned that "these violations of law are prima facie evidence of Ray Marcus's 

negligence." Id. In order to reach this conclusion, the court disregarded the fact that there is no 

evidence that shows that the Petitioner committed any ofthese crimes. It is absurd to conclude

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