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

V. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 

The high-low settlement agreement precludes this appeal for two reasons. First, the 

agreement does not provide for a right of appeal by the Petitioner. Secondly, because the high

low settlement agreement was entered into between Lori Ann Staubs and Nationwide, Petitioner 

has no standing to appeal in this case. 

The circuit court's order was correct and fully supported by the evidence. The Petitioner 

broke the law and violated his legal duties under two statutes. His violation of statutes is prima 

facie evidence of his negligence. The negligent actions of the Petitioner in furnishing alcohol to 

middle school children were proximate causes of tragedy which followed. While Petitioner 

claims that the subsequent events of that fateful evening were intervening acts, that is not the 

case. The subsequent events were the foreseeable consequences of the Petitioner's actions in 

facilitating the intoxication of young children. 

VI. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 

The Respondent does not believe that oral argument is necessary in this case, and 

Respondent does not request oral argument. 
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VII. ARGUMENT 

A. THE STANDARD OF REVIEW 

The Respondent agrees that the Supreme Court applies a de novo standard of review to a 

circuit court's decision to grant a summary judgment. Painter v. Peavy, 192 W.Va. 189, 451 

S.E.2d 755 (1994). 

B. 	 UNDER THE HIGH-LOW SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT IN THIS CASE, THERE IS NO RIGHT 

TO APPEAL. 

The high-low agreement in this case is specific. (R000410 - R000413). The single factor 

determining what Nationwide would be required to pay was "trial and verdict on the question of 

liability in the case." (R000411; ~2). The agreement does not provide for a right of appeal by 

either party. 

In that regard, the facts presented by this case are similar to Smith v. Settle, 254 Va. 348, 

492 S.E.2d 427 (1997). Smith arose out of a motor vehicle accident in Virginia. In Smith, there 

was a high-low agreement before trial providing that if the verdicts were less than $350,000, 

plaintiffs would receive $350,000, and if the verdicts exceeded $1,000,000, the maximum 

recovery would be $1,000,000. Id., at footnote 4. The jury in that case returned verdicts for the 

defendant Smith. Smith tendered $350,000 to the plaintiffs in accordance with the high-low 

agreement. The plaintiffs refused the tender and moved for a new trial. The defendant moved to 

enforce the high-low agreement. The circuit court denied the motion to enforce the high-low 

agreement and granted a new trial, finding that a new trial was warranted because the court had 

given erroneous instructions to the jury. 

A second trial ended in a hung jury. At the third trial, the jury again returned a defense 

verdict. Smith refused to pay the $350,000.00, claiming that the plaintiffs had breached the 

high-low agreement by refusing to accept the money when it was tendered after the first trial. 
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The circuit court ordered enforcement of the high-low agreement, and ordered Smith to pay the 

$350,000 called for by the agreement. 

On appeal, the Supreme Court of Virginia found that there had been no provision in the 

high-low agreement requiring that the jury be "properly instructed," nor had the agreement 

provided for a right to move for a new trial. Specifically, the court held: 

"Recognizing that there is no explicit provision in the agreement requiring the 
jury to be 'properly instructed on the law,' plaintiffs assert that it 'was an implicit 
term of the agreement [and] ... there was no agreement not to seek post verdict 
relief in the trial court.' " 

"Finding nothing in counsel's statement implying that a 'properly instructed' jury 
was part of the agreement or that either party could seek post-verdict relief in the 
trial court, we will not rewrite the agreement to impose provisions that are neither 
stated nor implied therein. Addison v. Amalgamated Clothing and Textile Workers 
Union ofAmerica, 236 Va. 233, 236, 372 S.E.2d 403, 405 (1988)." Id., at 429. 

The Supreme Court of Virginia found that the plaintiffs had breached the high-low agreement by 

refusing to accept the tender of $350,000 after the first trial and by moving for a new trial 

instead. The court found that based upon this breach of the agreement by the plaintiffs, the 

defendant Smith was no longer bound by the high-low agreement and reversed the circuit court's 

order which had directed the defendant to pay. Instead, the Supreme Court of Virginia directed 

entry ofjudgment for the defendant Smith. 

The case at bar is analogous. The high-low agreement in this case contains no provision 

providing any party with a right to appeal the circuit court's finding as to the Petitioner's 

liability. The Petitioner sought summary judgment instead of a trial and verdict as his chosen 

methodology for the determination of whether the Petitioner was liable. Of course, once the 

Petitioner moved for summary judgment on the question of liability, the Respondent was 

compelled to oppose the motion and to file her own cross-motion for summary judgment. Since 

the parties chose that path as their methodology for resolution of the single issue on which the 
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high-low agreement depended, this Honorable Court should not allow the Petitioner to have an 

appeal where the high-low settlement agreement did not provide for one, simply because the 

Petitioner does not like the result of the path that he chose below. 

C. THE PETITIONER HAS NO STANDING TO PROSECUTE THIS APPEAL. 

This Court has said that "standing is defined as '[a] party's right to make a legal claim or 

seek judicial enforcement of a duty or right. '" Findley v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 213 

W.Va. 80,94,576 S.E.2d 807,821 (2002) (quoting Black's Law Dictionary 1413 (7th ed.1999)). 

Ultimately, "the question of standing is whether the litigant is entitled to have the court decide 

the merits of the dispute or of particular issues." Warth v. Seldin, 422 U.S. 490, 498, 95 S.Ct. 

2197,2205,45 L.Ed.2d 343 (1975). See also Flastv. Cohen, 392 U.S. 83,99-100,88 S.Ct. 1942, 

1952, 20 L.Ed.2d 947 (1968) ("In other words, when standing is placed in issue in a case, the 

question is whether the person whose standing is challenged is a proper party to request an 

adjudication of a particular issue [.]"). See concurring opinion ofJustice Davis in State ex rei. 

Abraham Linc. Corp. v. Bedell, 216 W.Va. 99, 602 S.E.2d 542 (2004). 

Standing is an element of jurisdiction over the subject matter. State ex rei. Paul B. v. 

Hill, 201 W.Va. 248, 256, 496 S.E.2d 198, 206 (1997) (quoting 21A Michie's Jurisprudence 

Words & Phrases 380 (1987)). Further, "[s ]tanding is a jurisdictional requirement that cannot be 

waived, and may be brought up at any time in a proceeding." Franklin D. Cleckley, Robin Jean 

Davis & Louis J. Palmer, Litigation Handbook on West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, 

§ 12(b), p. 21 (Supp.2004). 

In the case at bar, the Petitioner lacks standing to prosecute this appeal. This is so 

because the Petitioner has no interest whatsoever in the outcome of this appeal, or more broadly, 

even in the outcome of the case. The Petitioner's interest ended when Nationwide and the 
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Respondent entered into the high-low settlement agreement. That agreement (R000410-

R000413) was not an agreement between the Petitioner and the Respondent, such that the 

Petitioner might claim to have some nominal interest in the result of the trial and verdict which 

were to follow. Rather, it was an agreement between the Respondent and Nationwide. 

After the high-low agreement was executed, it was no longer possible for there ever to be 

any judgment against the Petitioner or for anything which happened thereafter in this case to 

affect the Petitioner in any way. The agreement provides that Nationwide, and not the Petitioner, 

would pay a sum of money to the Respondent depending upon the verdict. The verdict at trial on 

the issue of liability would determine whether that sum would be $50,000.00 or $125,000.00. 

(,-r2 of the agreement; R000411). In either event, it would be Nationwide, and not the Petitioner, 

who would pay. Under the agreement, no judgment would ever be entered against the Petitioner. 

The agreement also provided that in either event, the Petitioner would be entitled to receive a 

complete release of all of the Respondent's claims against him. (,-r7 of the agreement; R000413). 

The Petitioner was not even a party to the high-low agreement. 

This is very different from a situation in which a high-low agreement is entered into 

between the parties to a case, and different even from a high-low agreement where the cap is 

within an amount of indemnification that an insurer will have to make. In that sort of agreement, 

it is the party, and not the insurer, who faces the prospect of a judgment being rendered against 

him (even if it is a judgment for which the party will be completely indemnified by his insurer). 

Here, no such result is possible. Here, once the high-low agreement was made, even before the 

question of Petitioner's liability was resolved, the Petitioner faced no possibility of a judgment 

against him for any sum. The Petitioner would be guaranteed a release no matter what happened 

thereafter. While not a party to the agreement, the Petitioner did urge the circuit court to approve 
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the agreement (R0004lS). The agreement eliminated all of his exposure and risk from any 

possible outcome in the case thereafter. 

In syllabus point 2 of Burns v. Cities Service Company, l5S W.Va. 1059,217 S.E.2d 56 

(1975) the Supreme Court said that standing requires "an actual and justiciable interest in the 

subject matter of the litigation." In syllabus point 5 of Findley v. State Farm Mut. Auto. Ins. Co., 

213 W.Va. SO, 576 S.E.2d S07 (2002), the Supreme Court held: 

"Standing is comprised of three elements: First, the party attempting to establish 
standing must have suffered an 'injury-in-fact' -an invasion of a legally protected 
interest which is (a) concrete and particularized and (b) actual or imminent and 
not conjectural or hypothetical. Second, there must be a causal connection 
between the injury and the conduct forming the basis of the lawsuit. Third, it must 
be likely that the injury will be redressed through a favorable decision of the 
court." 

As to this appeal, the Petitioner cannot meet the test for standing from Burns or Findley. The 

Petitioner has no "actual and justiciable interest in the subject matter of the litigation." 

Moreover, given the high-low settlement agreement between the Respondent and Nationwide, 

Petitioner can have no "injury-in-fact" from the circuit court's order which Petitioner has sought 

to appeal. This would be true even if the circuit court's decision were patently wrong, which, for 

reasons discussed below, it is not. Because Petitioner can have no injury, Petitioner has no 

standing to prosecute this appeal. 

The requirements for first party standing are "constitutional requirements." Granite State 

Outdoor Advertising, Inc. v. City of Clearwater, Fla., 351 F.3d 1112, 1116 (lIth Cir.2003). 

Justice Cleckley stated in Coleman v. Sopher, that Sections 3 and 6 of Article VIn of the West 

Virginia Constitution refer to the word "controversy." One of the incidents of [the] controversy 

requirement is that a litigant have standing, 194 W.Va. 90, 95 n. 6, 459 S.E.2d 367, 373 n. 6 

(1995). Likewise, this Court has consistently declined to grant "third-party standing" in cases 
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where a litigant seeks to assert the rights or interest of other persons. In Guido v. Guido, 202 

W.Va. 198, 503 S.E.2d 511 (1998), this Court reaffirmed this principle and determined that the 

appellant Mr. Guido had no standing to prosecute an appeal of a circuit court's order imposing a 

constructive trust upon funds in the possession of his parents. 

Here it is the same. The high-low settlement agreement entered into between the 

Respondent and Nationwide has removed from Ray Marcus any and all legal interest in the 

outcome of the case, including any interest in this appeal. Nationwide is not the indemnitor of 

the Petitioner Ray Marcus, as it once was. The high-low agreement changed that. Nationwide's 

obligation to pay the Respondent is not an obligation that arises from the insurance policy that 

Nationwide issued to the Petitioner's family. Rather, Nationwide's obligation now arises solely 

from the high-low agreement into which Nationwide entered with the Respondent. 

The circuit court had granted to the Respondent a default judgment against Ray Marcus 

on the issue of liability. (R0004l8 and R000421). Lori Ann Staubs surrendered that default 

judgment. Moreover, Lori Ann Staubs surrendered her right to have damages assessed and her 

right ever to pursue a judgment for money against Ray Marcus. She surrendered all of these 

rights in exchange for her own first-party contract with Nationwide. 

The Petitioner never notified his insurer Nationwide of this lawsuit or of the judgment 

against him. It was more than a year after the circuit court had granted default judgment on 

liability before Respondent was able to find out about the existence of the Nationwide policy 

insuring the Marcus family. Lori Staubs immediately gave notice to Nationwide of her claim. 

Nationwide then quickly issued a reservation of rights letter to the Petitioner Ray Marcus, 

claiming, inter alia, that Nationwide's rights had been prejudiced by the Petitioner's failure to 

provide Nationwide with timely notice of the claim and notice of the lawsuit. Nationwide 
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claimed that its insured, the Petitioner, had deprived Nationwide of its opportunity to investigate 

the claim and defend the lawsuit. Nationwide hired counsel to defend the Petitioner, but 

Nationwide expressly reserved the right to deny coverage. 

At the time that the high-low agreement was made, it was not clear that Nationwide was 

ever going to agree to indemnify Ray Marcus for any judgment that the Respondent might obtain 

against him. One of the purposes of entering into a high-low settlement agreement with 

Nationwide (as opposed to a high-low agreement between Lori Staubs and the Petitioner Ray 

Marcus) was to eliminate the issues that had been raised by Nationwide in its reservation of 

rights letter. The agreement between Lori Staubs and Nationwide disposed of all questions of 

whether by his conduct (failing to notify Nationwide), the Petitioner had voided the coverage 

afforded under the Nationwide policy. That issue no longer mattered because under the high-low 

agreement, Lori Ann Staubs had her own first-party contract with Nationwide. 

The question of what Nationwide must pay is a question between the Respondent Lori 

Ann Staubs and Nationwide. Petitioner is entitled to a complete release in this case no matter 

what happens. Accordingly, the Petitioner Ray Marcus lacks standing to appeal. 

D. 	 THE PETITIONER RAY MARCUS HAD A LEGAL DUTY NOT TO ASSIST IN FURNISHING 

ALCOHOL TO MIDDLE SCHOOL STUDENTS, AND HE BREACHED THAT DUTY. 

Ray Marcus contends that he had no duty to Jessica Staubs or to Samantha Staubs. 

(Petitioner's Brief, V(B)) The Petitioner is incorrect. The circuit court correctly found that a 

citizen has a duty to obey the law. Haymond v. Camden, 22 W.Va. 180 (1883); Hedges v. Price, 

2 W.Va. 192 (1867); Osborne v. Kanawha County Court, 68 W.Va. 189,69 S.E. 470 (1910); 

Caperton v. Martin, 4. W.Va. 138 (1870); State v. Chase Securities, Inc., 188 W.Va. 356,424 

S.E.2d 591 (1992). The Petitioner did not obey the law. 

West Virginia Code §11-16-19(c) provides as follows: 
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"Any person who shall knowingly buy for, give to or furnish nonintoxicating beer 
to anyone under the age of twenty-one to whom they are not related by blood or 
marriage is guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined 
an amount not to exceed $100 or shall be confined in jail for a period not to 
exceed ten days, or both such fine and confinement." 

The Petitioner Ray Marcus had a legal duty not to "knowingly buy for, give to or furnish" 

Hurricane Malt Liquor "40s" to anyone under 21 years of age. He breached that duty. 

If the girls had been 18, 19, or 20, then what the Petitioner Ray Marcus and Steven 

Woodward did would still have been illegal. But these girls were not 18, 19, or 20. They were 

children in middle school. 

Because the girls were children, the Petitioner had an additional duty under West Virginia 

Code §49-7-7, which provides in pertinent part as follows: 

"(a) A person who by any act or omission contributes to, encourages or tends to 
cause the delinquency or neglect of any child, .... shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor, .... " 

The Petitioner Ray Marcus contends that he did nothing whatsoever to breach these legal 

duties. He was "simply driving to the store." (Petitioner'S brief, page 12). In its decision, the 

circuit court correctly observed that the fact that Mr. Marcus did not go into the store was not 

determinative of whether his actions violated the law. The lower court considered and correctly 

applied the legal principle of expressed in Syllabus Point 11 of State v. Fortner, 182 W.Va. 345, 

387 S.E.2d 812 (1990):

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